
Dear Neighbor: 
I have prepared this pamphlet as a service to you, so that you may have available in a convenient package information 

on the many services that are available to you. This pamphlet provides you with basic information about senior benefits 
programs and guides you to the appropriate people to call for more information, which will help you find the programs 
that fit you best. The open enrollment period for Medicare Part B benefits is from January 1 to March 1.

Staff are available in my district of-
fices, at 2541-55 Adam Clayton Powell, 
Jr. Blvd. and 751 West 183rd Street, to 
help you apply for any of these services 
or to provide other assistance you may 
need. Bilingual services are available.

If you encounter difficulty in your 
search for assistance, or if you are not 
sure which agency to speak to, please 
contact my office at (212) 234-1430. 

Sincerely,

Herman D. Farrell, Jr.
Member of Assembly

Assemblyman Farrell and Manhattan Borough President Scott M. Stringer were greet-
ed by Uba A. Philip Randolph Senior Center Executive Director Tina Ashley during 
a December visit to the facility. 

Reduced Fare
 ★ Benefits

Reduced Fare privileges on NYC owned 
buses, subways, and the Staten Island Ferry 
24 hours per day, 7 days a week. Reduced 
Fare benefits are also available on NYC 
Transit and some private express bus lines 
during non-rush hours. Available to cus-
tomers with one of the following forms of 
identification: Reduced Fare Metro Card or 
Medicare Card. Reduced Fare Metro Card 
automatically deducts correct reduced fare, 
and allows you to transfer for free between 
NYC Transit subways and buses.

 ★ Eligibility
Persons 65+ and disabled riders.

 ★ Government Agency
NYC Transit
For application: 1-212-638-7622 or 
311 in NYC

Access-A-Ride (AAR)
 ★ Benefits

Provides transportation for people with 
disabilities who are unable to use pub-
lic bus or subway service for some 
or all of their trips. It offers shared 
ride, door-to-door paratransit service. 
MTA New York City Transit adminis-
ters AAR; private carriers under con-
tract to NYC Transit provide service.

 ★ Eligibility
Disabled riders.

 ★ Government Agency
NYC Transit: 1-877-337-2017 
or 311 in NYC

Social Security 
Retirement Benefits
 ★ Benefits

Monthly cash payments based on years 
of employment and amount withheld 
from earnings.

 ★ Eligibility
Retiree and spouse, if spouse is 62+, or 
with dependent child. The earliest age for 
a retiree to receive Social Security ben-
efits is at age 62, at which time they will 
receive only partial benefits to account 
for the fact that they will be paid over a 
longer period of time. In order to qualify 
for full benefits, the retiree must not retire 
until they reach the full retirement age, or 
FRA, which varies by year of birth. For 
those born in 1937 or earlier, the FRA is 
65. For those born later than 1938, the 
FRA gradually increases—for example, 
for those born in 1942 the FRA is 65 and 
10 months. 

 ★ Income Limits
Individuals under the FRA may earn up 
to $13,560, above which $1 will be with-
held from benefits for every $2 earned. 
The individual may earn up to $36,120 
prior to reaching the FRA in the year that 
they reach the FRA, above which $1 will 
be withheld from benefits for every $3 
earned. For individuals above the FRA, 
there is no limit on earnings. 

Government Agency
Social Security Administration: 
1-800-772-1213 or 
www.socialsecurity.gov

Survivors Benefits
 ★ Benefits

Payments based upon work record of 
deceased.

 ★ Eligibility
Widow/Widower, age 60+ (or 50+ and 
Disabled); Dependent parents age 62 or 
older; Widow/Widower of any age with a 
dependent child (under 16 or disabled). 

 ★ Government Agency
Same as SS Retirement Benefit.

Disability Benefits
 ★ Benefits

Payments based upon sufficient work 
prior to onset of disability.

 ★ Eligibility
Disabled individual of any age, with 
an impairment that is expected to keep 
him/her out of a customary occupation 
for minimum of one year, and spouse, if 
spouse is 62+, or with dependent child 
under age 16. Work requirements vary by 
age, but those over 62 must have worked 
for the equivalent of 10 full years, with 
5 of those years falling in the 10 years 
most recent to the onset of disability.

 ★ Government Agency
All same as SS Retirement Benefit.

Supplemental Security 
Income (SSI)
 ★ Benefits

Monthly cash payment to meet food, 
clothing and shelter needs financed 
through general tax revenues, not the 
Social Security Trust Funds.

HERMAN D. FARRELL, JR.

Reports to Seniors
ASSEMBLYMAN



 ★ Eligibility
People with limited incomes who are 
over 65, blind, or disabled of any age who 
have low income and resources. Must be 
of U.S. citizenship or lawfully admitted 
permanent resident. 

 ★ Income Limits*
Individuals living alone: $761.00 + $20*

Person living with others, but paying his or 
her own expenses: $697.00 + $20*

Person living in someone else’s household 
and receiving support and maintenance: 
$472.34+$20*

Person living in public general hospital 
or Medicaid-approved long-term facility: 
$35.00 or $55.00

Couple living alone: $1,115.00+$20*

Couple living with others, but paying their 
own expenses: $1057.00+$20*

Couple living in someone else’s household 
and receiving support and maintenance:  
$720.00+$20*   

*The first $20 of earned (wages) or un-
earned (monthly benefits, pensions, gifts) 
income is exempt.  An additional $65 is 
exempt from earned income, then SSI pay-
ments are reduced by one-half the remaining 
earned income in a month.

 ★ Resource Limits
Individuals:  $2,000.  Couples: $3,000.  

Exemptions: $1,500 per individual for buri-
al fund; home; car up to $4,500; personal 
and household goods up to $2,000.

 ★ Government Agency
Social Security Administration:
1-800-772-1213 

Medicare Part A - 
Hospital Insurance
 ★ Benefits

Medicare Part A (Hospital Insurance) helps 
cover inpatient care in hospitals, including 
critical access hospitals, and skilled nursing 
facilities (not custodial or long term care). 
It also helps cover hospice care and some 
health care. Most people don’t have to pay 
a monthly payment, called a premium, for 
Part A. This is because they or a spouse paid 
Medicare taxes while working. If a benefi-
ciary doesn’t get premium–free part A, they 
may be able to purchase coverage if they 
(or their spouse) aren’t already entitled to 
Social Security benefits.

 ★ Eligibility
Persons 65+ who are eligible for Social 
Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, 
disabled workers of any age after entitle-
ment to disability for 24 months, and per-
sons of any age with chronic renal dis-
ease. Those over 65 who are not eligible 
under any of the above categories may 
purchase Medicare coverage by paying a 
monthly premium.

 ★ Government Agency
Social Security Administration:
1-800-772-1213 

HIICAP: 1-800-701-0501

Medicare Part B - 
Supplemental Medical 
 ★ Benefits

Optional; partial coverage (80% of ap-
proved fee) for physician, outpatient clinic, 
skilled nursing care and durable medical 
equipment. There is a $155 per year de-
ductible and a $96.40 per month premium 
which can be deducted from ones Social 
Security, Railroad Retirement, or Civil 
Service retirement check, or can be billed 
tri-monthly. For new enrollees and those 
who do not have their premium payment 
deducted from their Social Security, Rail-
road Retirement, or Civil Service retirement 
check, the Medicare Part B premium was 
increased to $110.50.

 ★ Eligibility
Same as Medicare Part A.

 ★ Government Agency
Same As Medicare Part A.

Medicare Part D – 
Prescription Drug 
Coverage
 ★ Benefits

Covers both brand-name and generic pre-
scription drugs at participating pharma-
cies in your area. Medicare prescription 
drug coverage provides protection for 
people who have very high drug costs.

 ★ Eligibility
Everyone with Medicare is eligible for 
this coverage, regardless of income and 
resources, health status, or current pre-
scription expenses. To access this benefit, 
beneficiaries must enroll in a stand-alone 
prescription drug plan or a Medicare Ad-
vantage prescription plan.
Note: The annual open enrollment period 
starts on November 15th and ends on De-
cember 31st until 2011, when the enrollment 
period will be changed to October 15 -- De-
cember 7. If you don’t sign up for a plan dur-
ing this period you may join a Medicare pre-
scription drug plan from three months before 
you turn 65 to three months after you turn 65. 
Generally, if you are disabled, you may join 
three months before and three months after 
your 25th month of disability.

 ★ Government Agency
Social Security Administration:
1-800-772-1213 or www.medicare.gov
NYC Department for the Aging:
1-212-341-3200

Medicare Buy-in

(Medicaid/Medicare Dual  
Eligible Program)

 ★ Benefits
Depending on income, Medicaid will pay the 
monthly premiums for Medicare Part A or B 
and may pay deductibles and coinsurance.

 ★ Eligibility
For Medicare beneficiaries who are not 
eligible for Medicaid, but need assistance 
paying for Medicare Part B.

 ★ Income Limits
At the following income limits, pro-
gram pays for Medicare premiums and 
deductibles. The income limits below 
include a $20 exemption.

Income limits:
QMB (covers premiums, co-payments, 
deductibles and co-insurance) 
Individuals: $923 
Couples: $1,235

SLMB (recipient must have Part A, 
covers part B premiums only) 
Individuals: $1,103
Couples: $1,477

QI-1 (recipient must have Part A, cov-
ers Part B premiums only)
Individuals: $1,239
Couples: $1,660

QDWI (Includes additional earned 
income limits, covers Part A premiums 
only. Must be disabled, under 65, and 
have lost Part A due to return to work.)
Individuals: $1,825 
Couples: $2,449

NOTE: Resource limits apply under 
QDWI ($4,000 for individuals and 
$6,000 for couples).

 ★ Resource Limits
 ★ Government Agency

Social Security Administration: 
1-800-772-1213 

New York State Medicaid Hotline: 
1-800-541-2831

New York City Human Resources 
Administration:
1-877-472-8411

Medicaid Full Coverage
 ★ Benefits

Comprehensive coverage for prescription 
drugs, dental care, hospital, physician, lab-
oratory tests, skilled nursing facility, health 
related facilities, home attendant care and 
home health aide care, coinsurance and 
deductibles for nursing home care, mental 
health care, medical equipment and appli-
ances such as wheelchairs, and transporta-
tion to medical appointments. 

 ★ Eligibility
Persons 65+, blind, or disabled who meet 
income and resource eligibility. 

 ★ Income Limits
Individuals: $767 
Couples: $1,117

When one spouse is institutionalized and 
receiving Medicaid, the other spouse, 
while not receiving Medicaid, may retain 
$2,739 in monthly income and $109,560 
maximum in assets.

* First $20 income is exempt.

 ★ Resource Limits
Individuals: $13,800 
Couples: $20,100  
Exemptions: Primary residence, car, cer-
tain burial accounts.

 ★ Government Agency
Medical Assistance Program
Application for Medicaid made at offices 
throughout New York City.

HRA Hotline: 1-877-472-8411 or
HIICAP (Health Insurance Informa-
tion Counseling Assistance): 
1-800-701-0501



Medicaid Excess 
Income Program
 ★ Benefits

Medicaid coverage as described in Medic-
aid Full Coverage section, but on a month-to 
-month basis after the use of excess income 
to cover medical costs. Hospital coverage 
requires spend down of 6 months excess.

 ★ Eligibility
Those eligible for this program fall into 
one of the eligible categories, but have in-
come slightly above the limit. To receive 
benefits, you must “spend down” by pay-
ing the amount of excess income or by 
showing that your medical expenses are 
greater than the difference between your 
income and the limit. 

 ★ Income Limits
No maximum income, but medical ex-
penses must reduce net income to Med-
icaid eligible levels or the recipient must 
pay all excess income. 

 ★ Resource Limits
Same as Medicaid. 

 ★ Government Agency
HRA Hotline: 1-877-472-8411 

Food Stamps
 ★ Benefits

Monthly allotment of benefits through a 
debit card system for purchasing nutri-
tious food items; debit card is used in the 
place of cash at grocery stores or super-
markets. Dollar value depends on house-
hold size and income.

 ★ Eligibility
Low income households. If eligible, you 
will receive Food Stamp Assistance in 30 
days. Certain households, with little income 
or savings, or with high shelter costs, can re-
ceive Food Stamps benefits within five days.  
You do not have to be out of work to apply 
for Food Stamps, and you may own your 
own home and car and still be eligible.

 ★ Income Limits
Each case is reviewed individually. If 
your household is eligible, the amount of 
food stamps you receive depends on your 
monthly household income and expenses 
for such things as: mortgage or rent, utili-
ties, and child care or elder care needed to 
allow someone to work.

 ★ Resource Limits
Generally, your household cannot have 
more than $2,000 in resources (things 
you own). But, if your household includes 
a disabled person or a person age 60 or 
older, the limit is $3,000.

 ★ Government Agency
HRA Hotline: 1-877-472-8411

Emergency Assistance 
for Adults (EAA)
 ★ Benefits

Cash payments for food, rent, moving ex-
penses, utilities, furniture, repairs, etc. in 
case of emergency.

 ★ Eligibility
SSI-eligible persons or currently receiv-
ing SSI; with a documented need for as-
sistance.

 ★ Income Limits
Same as for SSI. 

 ★ Resource Limits
Same as for SSI. 

 ★ Government Agency
HRA Hotline: 1-877-472-8411

Lifeline Telephone 
Service
 ★ Benefits

Reduces cost of basic telephone service to 
as little as $1.00 a month for basic service.

 ★ Eligibility
Persons eligible to receive assistance 
benefits from at least one of these pro-
grams: Medicaid, Food Stamps, SSI, 
HEAP, Veterans non-service related 
Disability Pension and Veterans’ Sur-
viving Spouse Pension, Safety Net 
Assistance, Family Assistance. The 
person receiving aid from one of the 
above programs must be the one whose 
name appears on the phone bill, and 
must be 18+.

 ★ Agency
Verizon Telephone: 1-800-555-5000
www.lifelinesupport.org

Meals on Wheels
 ★ Benefits

Delivers hot or frozen meals to home-
bound elderly.

 ★ Eligibility 
Those over 60 with a chronic disability 
such that they cannot shop for and prepare 
their own food, who do not have a home 
attendant, and are receiving only limited 
Medicaid services.

 ★ Government Agency
For information contact RAIN (Regional 
Aid for Interim Needs): 1-212-567-3200. 

Elderly Crime Victims 
Resource Center
 ★ Benefits

Provides emergency financial assistance 
and supportive services to crime victims 
over the age of 60. This program offers 
counseling, crisis intervention, advocacy, 
referrals to the appropriate agencies for 
help in replacing important documents, 
limited financial assistance, and instal-
lation of security devices, as well as 
presentations with speaker and relevant 
literature.

 ★ Eligibility
Over 60 years of age based upon need and 
an assessment.

 ★ Government Agency
Department for the Aging: Dial 311 or 
1-212-NEW-YORK if outside the five 
boroughs.

Senior Citizen Rent 
Increase Exemption 
(SCRIE)
 ★ Benefits

Relief from obligation to pay rent in-
creases; landlord is compensated by re-
duction in real estate taxes.

 ★ Eligibility
Persons 62+, who live in rent-controlled, 
rent-regulated, or rent-stabilized apart-
ments, or in Mitchell-Lama or other Fed-
erally assisted co-ops, and whose rent 

is at least one-third of their income, not 
including air conditioning, auxiliary ser-
vices, and utility charges.

 ★ Income Limits
Combined total household income 
from all sources must be less than 
$29,000, including Social Security In-
come. On July 1, 2008, the amount in-
creased to $28,000.

 ★ Government Agency
New York City Dept. for the Aging, 
SCRIE, 2 Lafayette Street, 6th Floor  
New York, NY 10007 
Information and Referral: 311
For Mitchell-Lama call:  
Dept. of Housing Preservation and  
Development: 1-212-863-8494

Senior Citizens 
Homeowners 
Exemption (SCHE)
 ★ Benefits

Sliding scale real estate tax exemption 
of 5% to 50%; sliding scale reduction in 
maintenance fees for co-ops. New appli-
cations accepted yearly; must be renewed 
every two years if already enrolled.

 ★ Eligibility
Real estate owners, 65+ or disabled at 
any age, who use property exclusively as 
legal residence. The property must be a 
1-, 2-, or 3-family house, condominium 
unit, or co-op apartment. Those turning 
65 anytime during the year are eligible.  
Applicants may apply for the exemption 
at anytime to qualify for benefits for the 
following July 1st billing period. Those 
who are eligible for SCRIE are not eli-
gible for SCHE. 

 ★ Income Limits
Combined total income for all owners from 
all sources must be less than $35,400. Indi-
viduals can deduct documented non-reim-
bursed medical and prescription expenses.

 ★ Government Agency
NYC Department of Finance 
Customer Assistance Line: 
1-212-504-4080 
www.nyc.gov/finance

Home Energy 
Assistance Program 
(HEAP)
 ★ Benefits

Renters/homeowners may receive $40-
$540 to help with cost of home energy. If 
heat is included in rent: $40 or $50. Grant 
or energy credit, depending upon income, 
household size, and type of fuel used.

 ★ Eligibility
Low income homeowners and rent-
ers, 60+. Those who participated in the 
program last year will automatically be 
mailed a new application this year.

 ★ Income Limits
Monthly income: Individuals: $1,963 
Couples: $2,567 

 ★ Government Agency
Department for the Aging: 
1-212-442-1000 or 311 in NYC



IT-214 Real Property 
Tax Credit for 
Homeowners & Renters
 ★ Benefits

Cash payment tax credit of up to $375.

 ★ Eligibility
Homeowners (house market value no high-
er than $85,000); renters (no higher than 
$450/month after deductions) who spend 
sizeable percentage of income on property 
taxes or rent. NYS residents 65 or older.  
Public housing tenants are not eligible.

 ★ Income Limits
Yearly household income: $18,000.

 ★ Government Agency
Taxpayers Assistance Bureau (NYS De-
partment of Taxation & Finance):
1-800-225-5829 or www.nystax.gov 

Elderly Pharmaceutical 
Insurance Coverage 
(EPIC)
 ★ Benefits

Provides some prescription drug cov-
erage to low-income elderly; extent of 

coverage is determined on a sliding scale 
linked to income.

 ★ Eligibility
NYS residents 65 or older; must meet in-
come guidelines. Not eligible if receiving 
full Medicaid benefits.

 ★ Income Limits
Fee Plan: Individuals or couples who 
qualify must pay an annual fee, based 
on income levels, in quarterly install-
ments.
Single: $20,000 or less
Married: joint income $26,000 or less
Deductible Plan: Individuals or couples 
who qualify must pay their own pre-
scription costs (unless they have other 
coverage) until they meet an annual de-
ductible, which is based on income.
Single: $20,001 to $35,000
Married: joint income $26,001 to $50,000

 ★ Resource Limits
None

 ★ Government Agency
E.P.I.C. Helpline: 1-800-332-3742

School Tax Relief 
(STAR) Exemption
 ★ Benefits

Exemption from school property taxes for 
owner occupied primary residences. All 
New York City homeowners qualify for a 
basic exemption and senior citizen home-
owners can qualify for an enhanced exemp-
tion if they meet the below qualifications.

 ★ Eligibility
Enhanced: Seniors 65 years of age or 
older who own and live in a one-, two-, or 
three-family home, condominium or co-
operative apartment, whose income is less 
than $70,650. The benefit reduces prop-
erty tax approximately $375 a year.
Basic: All residential property owners 
who live in a one-, two-, or three-family 
home. The benefit reduces school prop-
erty tax approximately $201 a year.

 ★ Government Agency
NYS Department of Taxation & Finance:
www.nystax.gov
NYC Department of Finance: 
Call 311 or www.nyc.gov/finance 

Important Addresses & Phone Numbers
Fort Washington ARC

4111 Broadway and West 174th St. 
(212) 781-5700 

Isabella Senior Resource Center
4026 Broadway and West 169th St. 

(212) 543-4645 
Mary McLeod Bethune 

Senior Center
1970 Amsterdam Ave. and West 158th St. 

 (212) 928-6086
Central Harlem 

Senior Citizens Coalition 
120 140th St. and Lenox Ave.  

(212) 926-4465 
Washington Heights 

Community Services Inc
650 W 187th St. and Wadsworth Ave. 

(212) 781-8331
Riverstone Senior Life Services
(formerly Fort Washington Houses Services) 
99 Fort Washington Ave., Basement  

(212) 927-5600

Jewish Community Council
121 Bennett Ave. and West 187th Street 

(212) 568-5450
Hamilton Grange 

Senior Citizen Center
420 W 145th St. and Convent Ave. 

(212) 862-4181
Uba A Philip Randolph 

Senior Center
108 W 146th St. and Lenox Ave. 

(212) 283-7904
Steinway Child & Family Services

Esplanade Gardens, Inc.  
700 Lenox Ave. and West 145th St. 

(212) 234-0978 
Isabella Adult Day Health Care
515 Audubon Ave. and 191st Street

(212) 342-9287
J. Hood Wright Rec. Ctr.

351 Fort Washington Ave. and 
West 176th Street 

(212) 927-1563

Seniors Helping Seniors
600 West 168th Street, Basement

(212) 543-9383
Church on the Hill Luncheon
2005 Amsterdam Ave., 2nd Floor

(212) 781-6580
YM/YWHA Senior Center

54 Nagle Ave. and Ellwood Street 
(212) 569-6200 

STAR Senior Center
650 West 187th Street and 

Wadsworth Ave. 
(212) 781-8331

Moriah Older Adult 
Luncheon Club

90 Bennett Ave. and West 186th Street 
(212) 923-5715

Wilson Major Morris 
Senior Center

459 West 152nd Street and 
Amsterdam Ave.
(212) 234-4661

Assemblyman Farrell
REPORTS TO SENIORS

Assemblyman Farrell and Borough President Scott M. Stringer chat 
with Isabella Adult Day Health Care Program CEO Mark J. Kator.


